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'JNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - o w  -X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, - 

EDUARDO AROCENA, a/k/a "Omar," 
"Napoleon," "Andres," "Alejandro 
Medina," "Victor," . . 

Defendant. . 

. 0 (S) 83 Cr. 821 (RJW) 

GOVERNMENT'S MEMORANDUM OF LAW 
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO INTRODUCE 
AN UNAVAILABLE WITNESS'S STATEMENTS 
AGAINST PENAL INTEREST 

This memorandum is respectfully submitted in support 

of a motion which the Government will make prior to trial to 

permit it to introduce admissions of an unindicted co-conspirator, 

Jose Ignacio Gonzalez. Prior to becoming a fugitive, Gonzalez 

testified in a Federal Grand Jury concerning his membership in 

"Omega 7" and his participation in crimes in Miami, Florida, 

which are included in the above-captioned Indictment. The 

Government will offer into evidence a copy of the transcript 

of Gonzalez's testimony from which references to defendant 

Eduardo Arocena have been redacted. 
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STATEMENTS OF FACTS - 

into a cooperation agreement with the Government. Under that 

agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, Gonzalez 

would plead guilty to a two-count Information and would testify 

truthfully before the Grand Jury and at any other proceedings at 

which the Government requested his testimony. In turn, the 

Government agreed not to prosecute Gonzalez further for his 

activity asia member of "Omega 7." 

Pursuant to the ~ o o ~ e x a t i ~ n  _ ggremmff, Goszalez 
testified before a Federal Grand Jury on February 14, 
.rib' 

copy of the transcript of his testimony is attached as Exhibit B. 

Before the Grand Jury, Gonzalez admitted his involvement in 

"Omega 7." He described his participation in various bombings 

and attempted bombings, including the bombing of the Mexican 

Consulate in Miami, Florida, on September 11, 1981, and the 

attempt to bomb the Nicaraguan Consulate on September 2, 1982.* 

He also described his participation in efforts to raise money for 

"Omega 7" by agreeing to extort drug dealers, as well as his role 

in arranging for a French journalist named Hubert Lassier to 

interview defendant Arocena as the head of "Omega 7." 

* The bombing of the Mexican Consulate in Miami, Florida is 
predicate act "Em of Count Twenty-one of the Arocena Indictment. 
The attempted bombing of the Nicaraguan Consulate in Miami, 
Florida is included in the first overt act of Count Twenty-Six. 
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On February 21, 1984, Gonzalez pleaded guilty to 

Information 84 Cr. 151 (RLC) before Judge Robert L. Carter of 

this Court. That Information charged him in two counts with 

illegal possession of a destructive device in violation of Title 

26, United States Code, Section 5861(d), and with conspiracy in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 

On June 5, 1984, Gonzalez failed to appear as required 

before Judge Carter, who thereupon issued a warrant for 

Gonzalez's arrest. On June 5, 1984, Gonzalez was indicted for 

failure to appear, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 3150. Indictment 84 Cr. 343. On August 2, 1984, the 

Government also. moved for judgment on forfeiture of bail posted 

toward Gonzalez's release on the original charges. A copy of the 

affidavit in support of that motion is attached as Exhibit C. As 

set forth in that affidavit, the Government has been advised that 

Gonzalez fled to Guatemela on April 12, 1984. The Federal Bureau 

of Investigation and others have made a diligent, but as yet 

unavailing, effort to secure Gonzalez's return. 

Pursuant to Fed. R. Evid. 804 (b) (3) , the Government 

will offer into evidence at trial a transcript of Gonzalez's 

Grand Jury testimony, from which references to defendant Arocena 

have been redacted. The portion of the transcript which are to 

be redacted have been underlined in Exhibit B. 
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DISCUSSION 

The redacted transcript of Gonzalez's Grand Jury 

testimony is admissible under Fed. R. Evid. 804(b)(3).* Rule 

804(b) ( 3 )  permits the admission of an unavailable witness's 

statement against penal interest. It is beyond question that 

Gonzalez's fugitivity makes him "unavailable" for purposes of the 

Rule. It is equally clear that Gonzalez's statements before the 

Grand Jury were contrary to his penal interest. The charges 

which could; be brought against Gonzalez, based upon his admitted 

participation in bombings and racketeering conduct, far exceed in 

* Rule 804 provides: 

(b) Hearsay exceptions. The following 
are not excluded by the hearsay rule if the 
declarant is unavailable as a witness: 

(b) Statement against interest. A 
statement which was at the time of its 
making so far contrary to the declarant's 
pecuniary or proprietary interest, or so 
far intended to subject him to civil or 
criminal liability, or to render invalid a 
claim by him against another, that a reason- 
able man in his position would not have made 
the statement unless he believed it to be 
true. A statement tending to expose the 
declarant to criminal liability and offered 
to exculpate the accused is not admissible 
unless corroborating circumstances clearly 
indicate the trustworthiness of the statement. 
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number and in seriousness the charges to which he agreed to plead 

guilty, and eventually did plead guilty, pursuant to the 

cooperation agreement with the Government. Indeed, by his 

failure to comply with that agreement, Gonzalez may now be 

charged by Federal and State authorities with those additional 

crimes. 

The Second Circuit's decision in United States v. 

Winley, 638 F.2d 560 (2d Cir. 1981), - cert. denied, 455 U.S. 959 

(1982), which affirmed the admission of redacted guilty plea 

allocutions, is precisely on point. Winley involved a bank 

robbery trial before Judge Weinfeld, in which two unindicted 

co-conspirators refused to testify, although they had been 

ordered to do so. Accordingly, the co-conspirators were held to 

be "unavailable" witnesses under Rule 804. The Government 

offered in evidence the co-conspirators' guilty plea allocutions, 

each of which was redacted to exclude any reference to the 

defendant. The district judge received the witnesses' redacted 

admissions as declarations against penal interest. Because the , 

declarations were considered admissible to corroborate other 

testimony and to prove the existence of a conspiracy, but not to 

prove the defendant's membership in the conspiracy, the district 

court gave the jury cautionary instructions concerning the 

declarations of the two unavailable witnesses. 638 F.2d at 

561. 
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The Court of Appeals in Winley upheld theadmission of 

the unavailable witnesses1 redacted declarations. The Court 

observed that "evidence of a plea that does not implicate the 

defendant, i.e., name or in some manner refer to him, would seem 

to fall squarely within the ambit of Rule 804(b) (3)." 638 F.2d 

at 562. The Court noted further that "[ilt is hard to conceive 

of any admission more incriminating to the maker or surrounded 

by more safeguards of trustworthiness than a plea of guilty in 

federal court... ." - Ibid. - Cf. United States v. ~atsougrakis, 

715 F.2d 769 (2d Cir. 1983). 

Like the guilty plea allocutions in Winley, Gonzalezls 

inculpatory admissions were extremely incriminating and were 

surrounded by safeguards of trustworthiness inasmuch as they 

were made under oath in Federal Grand Jury proceedings. False 

statements by Gonzalez not only would have been punishable under 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1623, but would also have 

constituted a violation of his cooperation agreement. 

Accordingly, Gonzalez's inculpatory declarations, redacted to , 

exclude any reference to defendant Arocena, are admissible with 

a cautionary instruction for the purpose of corroborating other 

testimony at trial and to prove the existence of the "Omega 7"  

conspiracy. 
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CONCLUSION - 
A redacted transcript of co-conspirator Jose Ignacio 

Gonzalez's inculpatory declarations before the Federal Grand 

Jury is admissible under Fed. R. Evid. 804(b)(3). 

Dated : New York, New York 

August 7, 1984 

Respectfully submitted, 

RUDOLPH W. GIULIANI 
United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York 
Attorney for the United States 

of America 

By: 
BRUCE A. GREEN 
Assistant United States Attorney 
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' EXHIBIT A U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney - 
Southern District of  New York 

U n c S l h r h d m v t h  
Nrw Y A .  New Yarlt 10007 

February 10, 1984 

Stephen A. Glass, Esquire 
1250 N.W. 7th Street 
Miami, Florida 33125 

1 Re: united States v. Jose Ignacio Gonzalez, 83 Cr. 828 ( R E )  

1 Dear Mr. Glass: 

On the understandings specified below, the United States will accept guilty 
pleas from your client, Jose lgnacio Gonzalez, in the United States District 
Court for the Southern District of New York, to both counts of a felony 
Information to be filed by the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern 
District of New York and as to which Mr. Gonzalez will waive venue and 
indictment, charging violations in the Southern District of Florida and the 
Southern District of New York of 26 U.S.C. Q 5861(d) (illegal possession of a 
destructive device, as defined in 26 U.S.C. Q 5845(f)) and of 18 U.S.C. 6 371 
(conspiracy), carrying a maximum sentence of ten (10) years' imprisonment and 
a $10,000 fine for violation of 26 U.S.C. Q 5861(d) (as set forth in 26 U.S.C. 
6 5871) and a maximum sentence of five (5) years' imprisonment and a $10,000 
fine for violation of 18 U.S.C. 8 371, for a combined total possible maximum 
sentence of fifteen (15) years' imprisonment and $20,000 in fines. If he fully 
complies with these understandings, Mr. Gonzalez will not, except possibly for 
criminal tax violations, be prosecuted by this Office or by the United States 
Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida for (a) any other "Omega 
7" bombings that he participated in planning or executing; (b) any conspiracy or 
substantive crime related to raising money for "Omega 7;" (c) prior obstruction 
of justice and prior perjury before the Federal Grand Jury investigating "Omega 
7" crimes in the Southern District of New Ywk; (d) harboring fugitive Eduardo 
Arocena; and (el possession or creation of illegal firearm other than what is 
referred to in the Infor,nation. Further, if he fully complies with these 
understandings, this Office will not oppose dismissal, at  the time of sentencing 
on the aforementioned Information, of the two-count Indictment, 83 Cr. 828 
(RLC) which is currently pending against Mr. Gonzalez and which chmges him 
with making false declarations before the Grand Jury, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
5 1623. In addition, if he fully complies with these understandings, no testimony 
or other information given by Mr. Gonzalez (and no information directly or 
indirectly derived from such testimony or other information) will be used against 
him in my criminal tax prosecution. 

The understandings are that Mr. Gonzalez shall truthfully disclose all 
information with respect to the activities of himself and others concerning all 
matters about which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office for the 
Southern District of Florida inquires of him, and, further, shall truthfully testify 
before the Grand Jury and at any trials and other court proceedings with respect 
to any matters about which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office 
for the Southern District of Florida may request his testimony. 
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It is further understood that the sentence to be imposed upon Mr. Gonzalez 
is within the sole discretion of the sentencing Judge. This Office and the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida cannot and do not 
make any promise or representation as to what sentence Mr. Gonzalez will 
receive, nor will this Office recommend any specific sentence to the sentencing 
Judge. This Office will inform the sentencing Judge and the Probation 
Department of (1) this Agreement; (2) the nature and extent of Mr. Gonzalez's 
activities with respect to this case; and (3) the full nature and extent of Mr. 
Gonzalez's cooperation with this Office and the date when such cooperation 
coInmenced. In addition, this Office retains the right to present to the 
sentencing Judge and Probation Department, orally and/or in writing, any and all 
facts and argaments relevant to sentencing. It is further understood that this 
Agreement in no way affects or limits this Office's right to respond to and take 
positions on post-sentencing motions or requests for information which relate to 
parole or reduction or modification of sentence. 

It is further understood that, except as specifically stated in the final 
sentence of the firsf paragraph above, this Agreement is limited to the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York and the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida, and cannot bind 
other federal, state, or local prosecuting authorities, although this Office will 
bring the cooperation of Mr. Gonzalez to the attention of other prosecuting 
offices, if requested. 

It is further understood that Mr. Gonzalez must at all times give complete, 
truthful, and accurate information and testimony, and must not commit any 
further crimes whatsoever. Should Mr. Gonzalez commit any further crimes or 
should it be determined that Mr. Gonzalez has given false, incomplete, or 
m isleading test imony or informat ion, or have otherwise violated any provision of 
this Agreement, Mr. Gonzalez shall thereafter be subject to prosecution for any 
federal criminal violation of which this Office or the United States Attorney's 
Office for the Southern District of Florida has or have knowledge, including, but 
not limited to, perjury and obstruction of justice. Any such prosecutions may 
be premised upon any information provided by Mr. Gonzalez, and such 
information may be used against him. 

Furthermore it is agreed that in the event that it is determined that Mr. 
Gonzalez has violated any provision of this Agreement, (i) all statements made 
by Mr. Gonzalez to this Office or other law enforcement agents, and any 
testimony given by Mr. Gonzalez before a grand jury or other tribunal, whether 
prior to or subsequent to this Agreement, and any leads from such statements 
or testimony, shall be admissible in evidence in any and all criminal proceedings 
currently pending or hereafter brought against Mr. Gonzalez; and (ii) Mr. 
Gonzalez shall assert no claim under the United States Constitution, any statute, 
Rule ll(eI(6) of the ~ederal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of the 
Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other federal rule, that statements made by 
Mr. Gonzalez prior to or subsequent to this Agreement, or any leads therefrom, 
should be suppressed. It is the intent of this Agreement to waive any and all 
rights in the foregoing respects. 

% 
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It is further agreed thet Mr. Gonzalez will waive any rights he may have 
to be sentenced, on the guilty plea to be entered pursuant to this agreement. 
prior to the Government's determination thet Mr. Gonzalezls cooperation 
pursuant to this agreement has been completed. No additional promises, 
agreements, or conditions have been entered into other than those set forth in 
this letter, and none will be entered into unless in writing and signed by all 
parties. 

Very truly yours, 

RUDOLPH W. GIULIANI 
United States Attorney a 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 
Room 932; Tel.: ( 2 1 2 )  791-9232 

@W$L 7;6 mw 
EPTaEN A. GLASS, ESQ. 

Attorney for Jose Ignacio Gonzalez 

The foregoing is elso approved by the United States Attorney's Office for the 
Southern District of Florida. 

STANLEY MARCUS 

Frederick R. Mann, Jr. 
Assistant United States ~ttorney" 

for the Southern District of Florida 
Tel.: (305) 350-5454 4 



US. Departmeat of Justice 

United States Attorne)' - 
Southern District of New York 

One Sf. Andrew i Ploza 
New. York. New York 10007 

January 19, 1984 

Joseph Ryan, Jr., Esquire 
1250 N.W. 7th Street 
Miami, Florida 33125 

Re: Gerardo Necuze 

Dear Mr. Ryan:' 

On the understandings specified below, the United States will accept guilty 
pleas from your client, Gerardo Necuze, in United States District Court for the 
Southern District of Florida, to both counts of a two count felony Information 
to be filed by the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of 
Florida and as to which Mr. Necuze will waive indictment, charging violations 
in the Southern District of Florida and the Southern District of New York of 
18 U.S.C. 6 5  970(a) and 2 (destruction of property in the United States used by 
a foreign government; aiding and abetting) and 5 371 (conspiracy), carrying 
maximum sentences of five (5) years' imprisonment and a $10,000 fine per count, 
for a combined possible maximum sentence of ten (10) years' imprisonment and 
a $20,000 fine. If he fully complies with these understandings, Gerardo Necuze 
will not, except possibly for criminal tax violations, be prosecuted by this Office 
or by the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida 
for (a) any other "Omega 7" bombings that he participated in planning or 
executing; (b) any conspiracy or substantive crime related to raising money for 
"Omega 7;" (c) prior obstruction of justice and prior perjury before the Federal 
Grand Jury investigating "Omega 7" crimes in the Southern District of New 

< York; (dl harboring fugitive Eduardo Arocena; and (e) possession or creation of 
illegal firearms. In addition, if he fully complies with these understandings, no 
testimony or other information given by Mr. Necuze (and no information directly 
or indirectly derived from such testimony or other information) will be used 
against him in any criminal tax prosecution. 

The understandings are that Mr. Necuze shall truthfully disclose all 
information with respect to the activities of himself and others concerning all 
matters about which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office for the 
Southern District of Florida inquires of him, and, further, shall truthfully testify 
before the Grand Jury and at any trials and other court proceedings with respect 
to any matters about which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office 
for the Southern District of Florida may request his testimony. 
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It is further understood that the sentence to be imposed upon Mr. Necuze 
is within the sole discretion of the sentencing Judge. This Office and the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida cannot and do not 
make any promise or representation as to what sentence Mr. Necuze will 
receive, nor will this Office recommend any specific sentence to the sentencing 
Judge. This Office will inform the sentencing Judge and the Probation 
Department of (1) this Agreement; (2) the nature and extent of Mr. Necuze's 
activities with respect to this case; and (3) the full nature and extent of Mr. 
Necuze's cooperation with this Office and the date when such cooperation 
commenced. In, addition, this Office retains the right to present to the 
sentencing Judge and Probation Department, orally and/or in writing, any and all 
facts and arguments relevant to sentencing. It 'is further understood that this 
Agreement in no way affects or limits this Office's right to respond to and take 
positions on post-sentencing motions or requests for information which relate to 
parole or reduction or modification of sentence. 

It is further understood that, except as specifically stated in the final 
sentence of the first paragraph above, this Agreement is limited to the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York and the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida, and cannot bind 
other federal, state, or local prosecuting authorities, although this Office will 
bring the cooperation of Mr. Necuze to the attention of other prosecuting 
offices, i f  requested. 

It is further understood that Mr. Necuze must at all times give complete, 
truthful, and accurate information and testimony, and must not commit any 
further crimeswhatsoever. Shou1dMr.Necuzecommitanyfurthercr imesor  , 

should it be determined that Mr. Necuze has given false, incomplete, or 
misleading testimony or information, or has otherwise violated any provision of 
this Agreement, Mr. Necuze shall thereafter be subject to prosecution for any 
federal criminal violation of which this Office or the United States Attorney's 
Office for the Southern District of Florida has or have knowledge, including, but 
not limited to, perjury and obstruction of justice. Any such prosecutions may 
be premised upon any  information provided by Mr. Necuze, and such information 
may be used against him. 

Furthermore it is agreed that in the event that it is determined that Mr. 
Necuze has violated any provision of this Agreement, (i) all statements made by 
Mr. Necuze to this Office or other law enforcement agents, and any  testimony 
given by Mr. Necuze before a grand jury or other tribunal, whether prior to or 
subsequent to this Agreement, and any leads from such statements or testimony, 
shall be admissible in evidence in any and all criminal proceedings hereafter 
brought against Mr. Necuze; and (ii) Mr. Necuze shall assert no claim under the 
United States Constitution, any statute, Rule ll(e)(6) of the Federal Rules of 
Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other 
federal rule, that statements made by him prior to or subsequent to this 
Agreement, or any leads therefrom, should be suppressed. It is the intent of this 
Agreement to waive any and all rights in the foregoing respects. 
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It is further agreed that Mr. Necuze wiU waive any rights he may have to 
be sentenced, on the guilty pleas to be entered pursuant to this agreement, prior 
to the Government's determination that Mr. Necuze's cooperation pursuant to 
this agreement has been completed. The Government agrees that it will permit 
Mr. Necuze to surrender, rather than be arrested, on the Information to be filed, 
and that the Government will not oppose any reasonable bail request that Mr. 
Necuze may make, with regard to that Information. It is further agreed that 
Assistant United States Attorney Michael L. Tabak, or another representative of 
this Office if Mr. Tabak is unavailable, will attend the guilty plea and the 
sentencing of Mr. Necuze in the Southern District of Florida and will be 
available at that time to inform the sentencing judge orally about Mr. Necuze's 
cooperation and other relevant facts, as indicated above. No additional 
promises, agreements, or conditions have been entered into other than those set 
forth in this letter, and none will be entered into unless in writing and signed 
by all parties. 

Very truly yours, 

RUDOLPH W. GIULIANI 
United States Attorney A 

- 
~ichae l  L. Tabak 

Assistant United States Attorney 
Room 725; Tel.: (212) 791-0005 

APPROVED: 

Deputy Chief, Criminal Division 

Attorney for ~erardo'Necuze 

The foregoing is also approved by the United States Attorney's Office for the 
Southern District of Florida. 

STANLEY MARCUS 

By: 
Frederick R. Mann. Jr. 

Assistant United States ~ t t o r n e ~  
for the Southern District of Florida 

m . , - . .mi  - - -  - - -  - 



- .  U.S. Department of J w b  

Untted States ~ t t o m e i  
S o u t h  DIstrlcr o f  Ncw-York 

Mr. Justo Rodriguez 
- .  

Dear Mr. Rodriguez: 

OcuSlnrAa&wt?bm 
N.w Y d ,  k w  YarL 10007 
January 25, 1884 

On the anderstandings specified below, the United States will accept a 
guilty plea from you, in United States Distriot Court for the Southern District 
of Florida, to one count of a felony Information to be filed by the United States 
Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida and as to which you will 
waive indictment, charging violation in the Southern District of Florida and the 
Southern District of New York of 18 U.S.C. 8 371 (conspiracy), carrying a 
maximum sentence of five (5) years' imprisonment and a $10,000 fine. If you 
fully comply with these understandings, you will not, except possibly for criminal 
tax violations, be prosecuted by this Office or by the United States Attorney's 
Office for the Southern District of Florida for (a) any other "Omega 7" bombings 
that you participated in planning or executing; (b) any conspiracy or rubstantive 
d i n e  related to raising money for "Omega 7;" (c) prior obstruction of justice 
and prior perjury before the Federal Grand Jury investigating "Omega In crimes 
in the Southern District of New York; and (d) hatboring fugitive Eduardo 
Arocena. In addition, if you fully comply with these understandhgs, no 
testimony or other information given by you (and no information directly or 
indirectly derived from such testimony or other information) will be used against 
you in any criminal tar prosecution. 

The understandings are t h t  you stall truthfully disclose all information 
with respect to the activities of yourself and others concerning all matters about 
which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern 
District of Florida inquires of you, and, further, shall truthfully testify before .. - - the Grand Jury and at any trials and other court proceedings with respect to any 
matters about which this Office or the United States Attorney18 Office for the 
Southern District of Florida may request your testimony. 
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It is further understood that the sentence to be imposed upon you is within 
the sole discretion of the sentencing Judge. This Office and the United States 
Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida cannot and do not make 
any promise or representation as to what sentence you will receive, nor will this 
Office recommend any specific sentence to the sentencing Judge. This Office 
will inform the sentencing Judge and the Probation Department of (1) this 
Agreement; (2) the nature and extent of your activities with respect to this 
case; and (3) the full nature and extent of your cooperation with this Office and 
the date when such cooperation commenced. In addition, this Office retains the 
right to present to the sentencing Judge and Probation Department, orally and/or 
in writing, any and a l l  facts and arguments relevant to sentencing. It is further 
understood that this Agreement in no way affects or limits this Office's right 
to respond to a@ take positions on post-sentencing motions or requests for 
information which relate to parole or reduction or modification of sentence. 

It is further understood that, except as specifically stated in the final 
sentence of the first paragraph above, this Agreement is limited to the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York and the United 
States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida, and cannot bind 
other federal, state, or local prosecuting authorities, although this Office will 
bring your cooperation to the attention of other prosecuting offices, if 
requested. 

It is further understood that you must at all times give complete, truthful, 
and accurate information and testimony, and must not commit any further 
crimes whatsoever. Should you commit any further crimes or should it be 
determined that you have given false, incomplete, or misleading testimony or 
information, or have otherwise violated any provision of this Agreement, you 
shall thereafter be subject to prosecution for any federal criminal violation of 
which this Office or the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern 
District of Florida has or have knowledge, including, but not limited to, perjury 
and obstruction of justice. Any such prosecutions may be premised upon any 
information provided by you, and such information may be used against you. 

Furthermore it is agreed that in the event that it is determined that you 
have violated any provision of this Agreement, (i) all statements made by you 
to this Office or other law enforcement agents, and any testimony given by you 
before a grand jury or other tribunal, whether prior to or subsequent to this 
Agreement, and any leads from such statements or testimony, shall be admissible 
in evidence in any and all criminal proceedings hereafter brought against you; 
and (ii) you shall assert no claim under the United States Constitution, any 
statute, Rule ll(ex6) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of 
the Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other federal rule, that statements made 
by you prior to or subsequent to this Agreement, or any leads therefrom, should 
be suppressed. It is the intent of this Agreement to waive any and all rights 
in the foregoing respects. 
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It is further agreed that you will waive any rights you may have to be 
sentenced, on the guilty plea to be entered pursuant to this agreement, prior to - the Government% determination thet your cooperation pursuant to this agree!- 
ment has been completed. The Government agrees that it wi l l  permit you to 
surrender, rather than be arrested, on the Information to be filed, and that the 
Government will not oppose any reasonable bail request that you may make, with 
regard to that Information. It is further agreed that Assistant United States 
Attorney Michael L. Tabak, or another representative of this Office if Mr. Tabak 
is unavailable, will attend your guilty plea and sentencing in the  Wuthern 
District of Florida and will be available a t  that time to inform the sentencing 
fudge orally about your cooperation and other relevant facts, as indicated above. 
No additional promises, agreements, or conditions have been entered into other 
than those set forth in this letter, and none will be entered into unless in writing 
and signed by all" parties. 

AGREED 6 N D  CONSENTED TO: 

JUS 

Very truly yours, 

RUDOLPH W. GIULIANI 
United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 
Room 932; Tel.: (212) 791-9232 

Chief, Crim inal Division \ \ 

The foregoing is also approved by the United States Attorney's Office for the 
Southern District of Florida. 

STANLEY MARCUS 

By: 
Frederick R. Mann, Jr. 

Assistant United States Attorney 
for the Southern District of Florida 

Tel.: (305) 350-5454 

On January 25, 1984, 1 orally translated the entire foregoing threepage letter, 
verbatim, from English into Spanish for Mr. Rodriguez. 

.C ..* - 
Isolina Bernhard t 

- ... Certified lnterpreter . 



Gonzalez EXHIBIT B , 

MR. TABAK: I ' m  p i n g  t o  ask that- the wi tness  

be sworn. 

J O S E  I G N A C I O  G O N Z A L E Z ,  

c a l l e d  as a witneas ,  having been f i r s t  du ly  

*worn by the For- o f  t h e  Grand Jury ,  

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

(Time noted: 2 t 1 5  o 'c lock  porn,) 
S 

BY MR. TABAK: 

0 Would you please state your complete name? 

A Jose Ignacio Gonzalez, 

Q And your second name i s  Ignacio,  I-g-n-a-c-i-03 

A -- C-i-0, yes.  
I 

Q And i t ' s  Gonzalez, G-o-n-z-a-1-e-z? 

A Y e s ,  

Q Mr. Gonzalez, is it f a i r  t o  say  t h a t  you have 

n o t  been subpoenaed b u t  thaf  you are appearing v o l u n t a r i l y  

today be fo re  t h e  Grand Jury? 

A Yea, I do, 

Q Is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s ,  it is c o r r e c t ,  

0 And you have asked t h a t  t h e  ques t ions  be i n  

Engl ish and you've ind ica ted  t h a t  you p r e f e r  t o  answer i n  

English? 

A Y e s ,  
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Q As I ' v e  prev ious ly  explained t o  you, i f  a t  any 

p o i n t  you f e e l  t h a t  it would be h e l p f u l  t o  have an 
1 

I n t e r p r e t e r  here, w e  have one a v a i l a b l e  and w e  can have 

an i n t e r p r e t e r  here.  Okay? 

A Y e s ,  I know, 

Q Now, Hr. Gonzalez, i s  it [ f a i r  t o  gay t h a t  you 

a r e  aware t h a t  you a r e  c u r r e n t l y  under Indictment ,  indeed,  

an h d i c t m e n t  re turned  by t h i s  Grand J u r y  f o r  committing 

p e r j u r y  be fo re  t h i s  Grand Jury?  

A Y e s .  

0 You are aware o f  t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  I am aware o f  t h a t .  

0 And you a r e  c u r r e n t l y  j a i l e d  a t  t h e  ~ e t r o p o l i t a n  

Cor rec t iona l  Center  i n  Manhattan, is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

0 And are you f u r t h e r  aware t h a t  t h e  Government . 

h a s  t o l d  Judge Carter t h a t  b a r r i n g  o t h e r  developmentr, 

t h e  Government i n t e n d s  t o  ask  t h i s  Grand J u r y  to supersede 

t h e  Indictment  wi th  o t h e r  charges? 

A Y e s ,  I know, 

Q Now, have you d iscussed  your coming h e r e  today 

wi th  your a t t o r n e y ,  Stephen Glass? 

A Yes, I d i d .  

Q And d i d  he ag ree  t h a t  you should come v o l u n t a r i l :  

NATIONAL REPORTING INC. (212) 466-1280 



- 
t o  t h e  Grand Ju ry  today? 

A H e  d id  agree.  

Q And d i d  you p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  lengthy d i scuss ions  

wi th  M r .  Glass  about whether you ought t o  come i n  today, I I 
and s o  f o r t h ?  I !  

A Y e s ,  I d id .  I I 
Q And what your r i g h t s  were? 

A My r i g h t s  now? . 

Q W e l l ,  d i d  you d i s c u s s  with your a t t o r n e y  what 

your r i g h t s  were and whether you ought t o  come here? 

A Y e s ,  a l l  the impl ica t ions .  W e  d i scussed  it and 

he agreed with m e  t h a t  I should come and volunteer .  I I 
Q Now, I want t o  remind you of  c e r t a i n  important  

\ 
mat te r s  before  we begin. 

You are appearing be fo re  the March 1982 I I 
Addi t ional  Grand J u r y  No. 2. The Grand Ju ry  is i n v e s t i g a t i n g  I I 
murders, bombings and conspiracy t o  commit t hose  and o t h e r  r 

crimes which have occurred i n  the Southern D i s t r i c t  of 

New York and elsewhere saostly s i n c e  1977, many'..of which 

m e g a  7 has  taken c r e d i t  f o r ,  

Various p o s s i b l e  v i o l a t i o n 8  of t h e  c r iminal  - &ays - 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - 

of  t h e  United S t a t e s  being i n v e s t i g a t e d  by t h i s  Grand J u r y  

inc lude ,  among o t h e r s ,  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  T i t l e  18,  United I I 
S t a t e s  Code, Sec t ions  112, 371, 842, 844, 970, 1116, 1117, 
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1623, 1 9 6 2 ,  and T i t l e  26, United S t a t e s  C o a ,  Sec t ion  5861, 
: ! 

and t h e s e  s e c t i o n s  t h a t  I have mention relate to  a s s a u l t s  

on f o r e i g n  o f f i c i a l s  wdthin t h e  United S t a t e s ,  conspi racy  

to  v i o l a t e  Federa l  laws, i l l e g a l  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  of 

exp los ives ,  d e s t r u c t i o n  o f  f o r e i g n  Government p rope r ty  

l o c a t e d  i k  the United S t a t e a ,  murder, a t tempted murder and 

c o n s p i r a c y  t o  murder fo re ign  o f f i c i a l s  i n  the United 

S t a t e s ,  p e r j u r y  or f a l s e  s t a t emen t s  be fo re  t h e  Grand J u r y ,  

v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h e  RICO s t a t u t e ,  which r e l a t e s  t o  i n t e r -  

s t a t e  r acke tee r ing  a c t i v i t e s ,  and i l l e g a l  possess ion  of 

bombs or o t h e r  d e s t r u c t i v e  dev ices ,  among other p o s s i b l e  

v i o l a t i o n s  of  the Federa l  Criminal  Law. 

You are a t a r g e t  of t h i s  i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  and n o t  

o n l y  have you a l r e a d y  been i n d i c t e d  for p e r j u r y  be fo re  

t h e  Grand J u r y ,  b u t  it is p o s s i b l e  t h a t  you could be named 

a s  a  defendant  i n  a  superseding Indictment  or an 

a d d i t i o n a l  ind ic tment  on o t h e r  charges  a r i s i n g  o u t  o f  t h i s  

i n v e s t i g a t i o n .  

Do you unders tand t h a t ?  

A Yes, X do. 

Q Do you also unders tand t h a t  you are a t a r g e t  
- - 

- o f =  Awest-igakionbeing-conduct- by t h e  -United S e e s  

At torney ' s  O f f i c e  f o r  t h e  Southern District o f  F l o r i d a  
a c.4 

a t  a  Grand J u r y  down t h e r e ?  
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- 
A Y e s .  

Q You have t h e  r i g h t  t o  c o n s u l t  wi th  an a t t o r n e y  

o f  your choice  be fo re  answering any q u e s t i o n s  h e r e  today.  

F u r t h e r ,  a l though an a t t o r n e y  cannot accompany 

you i n t o  t h e  Grand J u r y  room because t h e  Grand J u r y ' s  

proceedings  are secret, your a t t o r n e y  can be p r e s e n t  

o u t s i d e  the Grand J u r y  r o o m  and you may l e a v e  the Grand 

J U ~ '  room a t  any time t o  confe r  with your a t t o r n e y  b e f o r e  

answering any ques t ions .  

Do you understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q NOW, you are c u r r e n t l y  r ep resen ted  by a lawyer 

t h a t  you have p r i v a t e l y  r e t a i n e d  named Stephen A. Glass, 

i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I t  is. Y e s .  

Q H e  is from Miami, F l o r i d a ,  r i g h t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Is it fa i r  t o  say  t h a t  t h e r e  has been a eerie8 

of l eng thy  d i s c u s s i o n s  between you and your a t t o r n e y  and 

m e  and M r .  Mann, of the U,S, Attorney ' s  Of f i ce  f o r  the 
Fl,r ; d ~  

Southern Distr ict  of New York a b o u t  whether you ought  to 

appea r  h e r e  today and whether any agreement could  be 

reached between you and t h e  Government? 

A Y e s ,  
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A Yes. - 

Q Before you are asked any q u e s t i o n s ,  I'm going 

t o  remind you o f  your  C o n s t i t u t i o n a l  r i g h t s .  

Under t h e  F i f t h  Amendment to t h e  United S t a t e s  

C o n s t i t u t i o n ,  you have the  r i g h t  t o  r e f u s e  t o  answer any 

ques t ion  i f  you b e l i e v e  t h a t  your t r u t h f u l  answer t o  t h a t  

q u e s t i o n  would t end  t o  inc r imina te  you. 

Do you understand t h a t ?  

A  Ah huh. Y e s ,  I do. 

Q You may answer some ques t ions  and you may 

r e f u s e  t o  answer any o t h e r  ques t ions  which you b e l i e v e  

may i n c r i m i n a t e  you. 

Do you understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q I f  you do answer any q u e s t i o m  t h e  answers 

which you g i v e  may be used a g a i n s t  you by the Grand J u r y  

or i n  a c o u r t  o f  l a w  or  other proeceedings.  
I 

Do you unders tand t h a t ?  

A -  - - Yes . - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - ~  ~ 

Q If  you dec ide  t o  answer q u e s t i o n s  which a r e  

asked o f  you, you may also t h e r e a f t e r  s t o p  answering a t  

any t ime and invoke y o u r ~ i v i l e g e  a g a i n s t  s e l f -  

i n c r i m i n a t i o n ,  as I have expla ined  t o  you. 

Do you unders tand t h a t ?  



Q And is it f a i r  t o  say t h a t  you have thought  

about  t h i s  very  c a r e f u l l y  and you've d i scussed  it a t  l e n g t h  

wi th  your a t to rney?  

A Y e s ,  I have. 

0 And you've d i scussed  it with your a t t o r n e y  a t  

t imes when no one from the Government was p r e s e n t ,  is 

t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

- A Y e s .  

Q Now, I w i l l  remind you t h a t  a l though your 

a t t o r n e y  i s  n o t  p h y s i c a l l y  p r e s e n t  o u t s i d e  the Grand J u r y  

room today,  that  i f  a t  any t i m e  you want t o  te lephone  

him or you want t h e  proceedings postponed or adjourned 

s o  t h a t  you can c o n s u l t  w i t h  him aga in ,  j u s t  t e l l  u s  and 

w e ' l l  comply wi th  your reques t .  Okay? 

A Okay. Yes. 

Q Now, you a r e  under o a t h ,  which means you have , 

sworn t o  t e l l  t h e  t r u t h .  I f  you l i e  to  t h e  Grand J u r y ,  

t h a t  is, i f  you make a knowing miss ta tement  o f  a m a t e r i a l  

f a c t  t o  the Grand Ju ry ,  you can be charged wi th  a cr ime,  

and i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  w i th  a d d i t i o n a l  counts  o f  pe r ju ry .  
p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - -  ~ 

You unders tand t h a t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Do you understand a l l  o f  your r i g h t s  a s  I ' v e  

exp la ined  them to  you? 
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A 
- 

Y e s ,  I do. 

Q Now, is it f a i r  t o  s ay  t h a t  l a s t  Fr iday,  a f t e r  

a s e r i e s  o f  l engthy  meetings and d i s c u s s i o n s  between you 

and your a t t o r n e y  and m e  and Mr. Mann, and s o  f o r t h ,  t h a t  

you made an agreement w i th  the Government which w a s  

reduced t o  wr i t i ng?  

A Y e s .  

' Q And d i d  you r ead  t h e  agreement c a r e f u l l y  b e f o r e  

you s igned  i t ?  

A I d id .  

0 D i d  you d i s c u s s  it w i t h  your a t t o r n e y  be fo re  

you s igned  it? 

A I d id .  

Q Was he p r e s e n t  at t h e  t ime  t h a t  you s igned  i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And d i d  h e  a l s o  s i g n  i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And d i d  you and your a t t o r n e y  i n i t k a l  every 

page o f  the agreement? 

A Y e s ,  w e  d i d .  

MR. TABAK: I ' m  now going to ask  t h a t  this 

document, which i s  a three-page le t ter  addressed t o  

Stephen Glass ,  da t ed  February l o t h ,  1984 -- t h i s  

is a copy -- be marked as E x h i b i t  3 of  today 's  d a t e .  
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(So marked.) - 

Q M r .  Gonzalez, I want you t o  look t h i s  over  and 

t e l l  t h e  Grand J'Qbry i f  t h i s  is  a copy o f  t h e  agreement 

t h a t  you made and t h a t  you s igned and i n i t i a l e d .  

A Y e s ,  it is. 

Q Now, you have your g l a s s e s  on,  and I w i l l  a s k  

you t o  look a t  t h e  t h i r d  page. Is t h a t  your s igna tu re?  

A Y e s .  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And is it your i n i t i a l s  on pages 

1, 2 and -33 

A Y e s .  

Q Hov, I want t o  go ove r ,  n o t  the e n t i r e  letter,  

b u t  c e r t a i n  p rov i s ions  o f  it before  I ask you any 

ques t ions  he re  today, j u s t  t o  make s u r e  t h a t  i n  a d d i t i o n  

to  a l l  t h e  d i scuss ions  t h a t  you've prev ious ly  had w i t h  

your a t t o r n e y  about  it, t h a t  i t ' s  on t h e  record  h e r e  

today t h a t  you understand what t h i s  agreement says .  

The agreement says  t h a t  on t h e  unders tandings 

s p e c i f i e d  below, t h e  United S t a t e s  w i l l  accept  g u i l t y  

p l e a s  from you -- now, I ' m  -- s i n c e  i t ' s  addressed t o  

M r .  Glass, I ' m  going t o  paraphrase it as it relates to  

you. 

On t h e  unders tandings s p e c i f i e d  below, t h e  

United S t a t e s  w i l l  accept g u i l t y  pleas from you i n  t h e  
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United S t a t e s  District Court  f o r  t h e  Southetn District o f  

New York t o  bo th  counts  o f  a fe lony  Informat ion t o  be 

f i l e d  by t h e  United S t a t e s  At torney ' s  O f f i c e  f o r  t h e  

Southern District o f  New York and a8 t o  which you w i l l  

waive venue and ind ic tment  -- and 1'11 go i n t o  what t h a t  

means aga in  i n  a minute -- charg ing  v i o l a t i o n 8  i n  t h e  

Southern District o f  F l o r i d a  and t h e  Southern District o f  

New ~ o r k  o f  26 United S t a t e s  Coda, Sec t ion  5861D, i l l e g a l  

possess ion  o f  a d e s t r u c t i v e  device ,  as def ined  i n  26 

United S t a t e s  Code, Sec t ion  5845F, and o f  1 8  U m S m  Code, 

Sec t ion  371, conspiracy.  

Now, l e t  m e  i n t e r r u p t  j u 8 t  t o  go over  a couple  

of these areas. Is it correct t h a t  you have agreed t h a t  

you are going t o  e n t e r  g u i l t y  p l e a s  t o  this two-count 

Informat ion t h a t  d v e  d i scussed?  

A Yes. 

Q And you unders tand t h a t  both of the charges 

are fe lony  charges? 

A Y e s  . 
- - -  

- - - 0 - - Nr r i gh t .  M d - d o  you G d e r s t G d - t h a t  the 

cha rge  o f  i l l e g a l  possess ion  of a d e s t r u c t i v e  dev ice  carrier 

a maximum sen tence  o f  t e n  y e a r s  imprisonment and a 

$10,000 f i n e ?  

A Y e s ,  I do. 



. 
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- 
Q And do you a l s o  understand t h a t  v i o l a t i o n  of  

t h e  conspi racy  s t a t u t e  c a r r i e s  a maximum pena l ty  o f  f i v e  

y e a r s  imprisonment and a $10,000 f i n e ?  

A Y e s ,  

Q So you ' re  aware t h a t  you w i l l  be p lead ing  

g u i l t y ,  i f  you c a r r y  through on t h i s  agreement, t o  charges  

which could r e s u l t  i n  a s  much as f i f t e e n  y e a r s  imprison- 

ment and a $20,000 i n  f i n e s ? '  

A Y e s ,  I do. 

Q And you have agreed t h a t  you ' re  going t o  waive 

Indictment ,  which means t h a t  you ' r e  n o t  going to  a sk  a 

Grand J u r y  t o  v o t e  on whether you should be charged wi th  

t h i s ,  you ' re  j u s t  going t o  a l low t h e  Government t o  f i l e  

t h e  charges ,  is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s , I  do agree,  

Q And you have also agreed that you are going t o  

waive venue, which means t h a t  you are n o t  going to i n s i s t  

t h a t  t h e  charges  be f i l e d  i n  F l o r i d a ,  b u t  i n s t e a d  you ' re  

prepared to  have them f i l e d  i n  New York and t h a t  you w i l l  

p l e a d  g u i l t y  t o  them i n  New York, is that  correct? 

A Y e s ,  I do, 
p p - p p p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  ~ 

Q You unders tand t h a t  you have the r i g h t  o r  you 

would have the r i g h t ,  i f  you weren ' t  v o l u n t a r i l y  g i v i n g  

it up pursuant  t o  this agreement, t o  be  charged i n  F l o r i d a  
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r a t h e r  than  i n  New York and t o  f a c e  t r i a l  i n  F l o r i d a ,  do 

you unders tand t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  1 do. 

Q But you've decided t o  waive t h a t  r i g h t  and 

be charged i n  New York? 

A Yes. 

Q You a l s o  understand t h a t  you would have t h e  

r i g h t  t o  have t h e  charges  brought before  a Grand J u r y  

b e f o r e  you could  b e  formal ly  charged and t h e  Grand J u r y  

might v o t e  n o t  t o  charge you and i n  which c a s e  you 

wouldn' t  be charged and you ' re  g i v i n g  up t h e n g h t  t o  have 

a Grand J u r y  pas s  on t h a t  ques t ion ,  you ' re  j u s t  a l lowing 

t h e  United S t a t e s  At torney ' s  Of f i ce  to f i l e  t h e  charges ,  

i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s ,  it is. 

Q And you've d i scussed  this with your a t t o r n e y ?  

A I d id .  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And I also want t o  make sure t h a t  

you unders tand by ag ree ing  to  p lead  g u i l t y  t o  t hose  

charges  t h e r e  are c e r t a i n  r i g h t s  t h a t  you have t h a t  you ' re  

g i v i n g  up v o l u n t a r i l y  i f  you dec ide  t o  go through w i t h  

t h i s .  I n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  you would have t h e  r i g h t  t o  p lead  n o t  

g u i l t y ,  a s ,  indeed,  you've prev ious ly  done on t h e  p e r j u r y  

charges i n  New York, and you would have the r i g h t  to  
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I1 con t inue  t o  p lead  n o t  g u i l t y .  

Q And . i f  you d i d  p lead  n o t  g u i l t y ,  the Government 

would be requ i r ed  t o  have a t r i a l  a t  which the Government 

would have t o  prove beyond a reasonable  doubt  each and 1 
eve ry  element o f  the charges  a g a i n s t  you t o  t h e  s a t i s f a c t i o n 1  

of  41 twelve o f  the ju ro r s ;  do you understand t h a t ?  

A Yes, I do. 

Q And i f  any one  of  t h e  twelve j u r o r s  was n o t  

c onvinced beyond a reasonable  doubt  t h a t  you were g u i l t y ,  

t hen  you could n o t  be convicted;  do you understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q I n  o t h e r  words, the Government cannot c o n v i c t  

you u n l e s s  a l l  twelve j u r o r s  unanimously ag ree  t h a t  the i 
Government has  proved beyond a reasonable  doubt t h a t  you ,. 1 
a r e  g u i l t y ;  do you unders tand t h a t ?  

1 A I do. 

- Q Do you a l s o  understand t h a t  you would have the 

presumption o f  innocence a t  t h e  t r i a l  and the judge w u l d  

l n e t r u c t  the $ury that  you are to be considered innocent  

and t h a t  the Indictment  i t s e l f  doesn ' t  mean t h a t  you ' re  

g u i l t y ,  i t ' s  j u s t  a charge  t h a t  you ' r e  f a c i n g  and they  a r e  

t o  cons ide r  you innocent  u n l e s s  and u n t i l  the Government I 
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has  proved beyond a reasonable  doubt t h a t  you were g u i l t y  

of  t h e  charges;  do you understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  1 do. 

Q Do you a l s o  understand t h a t  you would n o t  have 

t o  call  any wi tnes ses  or p u t  any evidence on a t  the 

t r i a l ;  you would have the r i g h t  t o  c a l l  wi tnesses  and have 

your  lawyer c a l l  w i tnes ses  and r e q u i r e  w i tnes ses  t o  

t e s t i f y  i n  your defense ,  b u t  you would n o t  have to  do t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  I do. 

Q And you unders tand t h a t  when t h e  Government 

would ca l l  wi tnes ses  t o  t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  you a t  a t r i a l ,  

t h a t  your a t t o r n e y  and you would have t h e  oppor tun i ty  t o  

conf ront  them, which is to  say ,  t o  si t  t h e r e  and be 

p r e s e n t  whi le  t h e s e  people  t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  you and you 

would a l s o  have t h e  r i g h t  t o  cross-examine t h e s e  witnesses; 

do you unders tandtha t?  
I 

A I do. 

Q Do you also unders tand that you would have 

t h e  r i g h t  t o  an a t t o r n e y  a t  t h e  t r i a l ,  and i f  you cou ldn ' t  

a f f o r d  t o  pay t h e  fee f o r  an a t t o r n e y  to do t h e  t r i a l ,  

t h a t  t h e  Court  would appo in t  a q u a l i f i e d  a t t o r n e y  free of 

charge  f o r  you? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And t h a t  t h a t  a t t o r n e y  would r e p r e s e n t  you a t  



a l l  s t a g e s  of  t h e  proceedings? - 

A Yes. 

Q Do you a l s o  unders tand t h a t  a t  t h e  t r i a l  you 

w o u l d  be  al lowed t o  t e s t i f y  i n  your own beha l f  i f  you 

wanted t o ,  b u t  t h a t  you could n o t  be fo rced  to  t e s t i f y  

i f  you d i d n ' t  want t o ,  and t h a t  t h e  Judge would i n s t r u c t  

t h e  J u r y  t h a t  t hey  should  n o t  cons ide r  a g a i n s t  you the 

f a c t  t h a t  you chose n o t  t o  t e s t i f y ,  i f  you decided n o t  t o  

t e s t i f y ?  

A Y e s ,  I unders tand.  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And do you a l s o  unders tand t h a t  by 

p l ead ing  g u i l t y  t o  t h e  charges ,  t h a t  t h e r e  w i l l  n o t  be  

any f u r t h e r  t r i a l  and you w i l l  be considered j u s t  as 

conv ic t ed  and j u s t  as g u i l t y ,  and you can be sentenced 

t h e  same way as i f  you had gone t o  t r i a l  and been found 

g u i l t y ?  

A Y e s ,  I do. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And you've d i scussed  a l l  o f  these 

matters w i t h  your  a t t o r n e y ,  is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I: did .  

Q Now, i n  a d d i t i o n ,  is  it f a i r  t o  nay t h a t  t h e r e  

have been no t h r e a t s  made t o  you -- 
A No. 

Q -- t o  g e t  you t o  make t h e  p l e a ?  
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A No . - 

Q And it's a voluntary decision on your part? 

A Yes. 

Q And your lawyer concurs in this decision? 

A Yes. 

Q All right. And is it fair to say that no promises 

or predictions have been made to you about what the 

sentence is actually going to be that the Judge will 

impose? 

A You're right- 

Q And is it fair to say that the only agreements 

that have been reached are contained in this letter of 

February loth, 1984, which i6 Exhibit 3 of today's date? 

A Yes 

Q All right. Now I want to begin going through 

the letter here. 

It says that if you fully comply w i t h  the under- 

standings in the agreement, you will not, except possibly 

for criminal tax violations, be prosecuted by the United 

States- Attorney's Office for the Southern District of 

New York or the United States Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida for any other Omega 7 

bombings that you participated in planning or executing, 

any conspiracy or substantive crime related to raising 
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money fo r  Omega 7 ,  any p r i o r  obs t ruc t ion  o f - j u s t i c e  o r  

p r i o r  pe r ju ry  before t he  Grand Jury i nve s t i ga t i ng  Omega 7 

crimes i n  t h e  Southern D i s t r i c t  of  New York o r  f o r  

harboring f u g i t i v e  Eduardo Arocena or f o r  possession o r  

c r ea t i on  of i l l e g a l  f i rearms o the r  thanwhat is r e f e r r e d  t o  

i n  t h e  Information t h a t  you're going t o  be pleading to. 

So, you understand, t h e  Government has agreed 

i n  t e t u r n  f o r  your pleading g u i l t y  and t he  o the r  t h ings  

you're agreeing t o  i n  t h i s  letter, t h a t  it w i l l  no t  

charge you with any of those o the r  crimes. 

You understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  I do. 

Q Fur ther ,  it i s  provided i n  t h e  agreement t h a t  

i f  you f u l l y  comply with these  understandings, t h e  United 

S t a t e s  Attorney 's  Of f i ce  f o r  the Southern D i s t r i c t  o f  

New York w i l l  no t  oppose t h e  d i smissa l  a t  the time you . 

a r e  sentenced on the charges that you a r e  pleading g u i l t y  

t o  of  t h e  Indictment which i s  cu r r en t l y  pending aga in s t  

you and which charges you with making false dec l a r a t i ons  

before  t h e  Grand Jury.  So, you understand t h a t  the 

Government has agreed t h a t  no t  only w i l l  it no t  charge 

you with the  o t h e r  t h ings  t h a t  I 've mentioned, bu t  t h e  

Government w i l l  no t  oppose having t h e  cu r r en t  pe r ju ry  

c harges dismissed a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you a r e  sentenced for  
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the two charges that you have agreed to plead - guilty to, 

which are illegal possession of a destructive device and 

conspiracy? 

A Yes, I understand. 

Q All right. Now, I'm skipping certain other 

matters here. 

The letter also nays, and again I'm paraphrasing, 

t h a t  the understandings are that you shall truthfully 

disclose all information with respect to the activities 

of yourself and others concerning all matters about 

which the United States Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of New York or for the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida 

inquires of you. 

So, you understand that you have agreed that 

you will provide complete and truthful information not 

only about your own activities, but the activities of 

anybody else that we ask you about. 

A Yes. 

Q And you have also agreed that you will truth- 

fully testify before the Grand Jury and at any trials and 
- - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - -  - -  
- - - - - - - - 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - -  
- 

other court proceedings with respect to any matters about 

which the United States Attorney's Officefir the Southern 

District of New York or the United States Attorney's 
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Of f i ce  f o r  t h e  Southern District of  Florida-may request  

your testimony? 

A Y e s .  

Q And you have agreed t o  t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And you understand t h a t  although I have 

ind ica ted  t o  you t h a t  the Government is  doing everything 

t h a t  it can t o  t r y  t o  g e t  var ious  people involved i n  t h i s  

c a ~ e  t o  plead g u i l t y ,  as you 're doing, 60 t h a t  it won't 

be necessary f o r  you t o  t e s t i f y ,  t h a t  I can ' t  guarantee 

you t h a t  'everybody w i l l  plead g u i l t y  and it may be t h a t  

you w i l l  be c a l l e d  upon t o  t e s t i f y ?  

A Yes. 

Q You understand t h a t ?  , 

A Y e s .  

Q And you a l s o  understand t h a t  you have agreed 

t o  t e s t i f y  i f  you're ca l l ed?  

A Y e s .  

Q Including a t  a pub l i c  t r i a l ?  

A Yes. 

Q Now, t h e  agreementgoes on t o  ~ a y ,  it iu f u r t h e r  

understood t h a t  t h e  sentence to be impomed upon you is  

wi th in  t h e  s o l e  d i s c r e t i o n  of  t h e  sentencing judge, 

who you know i s  Judge Carter, and you r e c a l l  you have been 
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before him in this case? - 

A Yes. 

Q And this office and the United States Attorney's 

Office for the Southern District of Florida cannot and 

do not make any promise or representation as to what 

sentence you will receive nor will the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York 

recdnmend any specific sentence to the rentencing judge; 

you understand that? 

A Yes. 

Q And then it rays that this office will inform 

the sentencing judge and Probation Department of this 

agreement and the nature and extent of your activities 

with respect to this case, in other words,what you've 

done wrong, and the full nature and extent of your 

cooperation with this office and the date when that 

commenced. 

You understand that? 

A Yes. 

Q In addition, the United States Attorney's 

Off ice retains -the xight to-present ko t h e  -sentencing 

judge and the Probation Department orally and/or in 

writing any and all facts and arguments relevant to 

sentencing. 
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I t  i s  f u r t h e r  understood t h a t  t h i s  agreement 

i n  no way a f f e c t s  o r  l i m i t s  t h e  United S t a t e s  At torneys '  

O f f i c e s  r i g h t  to  respond t o  and t a k e  p o s i t i o n s  on post-  

s e n t e n c i n g  motions o r  r e q u e s t s  f o r  informat ion which r e l a t e  

t o  parole o r  r educ t ion  o r  modi f ica t ion  o f  sen tence ,  

You unders tand t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  

Q It is  f u r t h e r  understood t h a t  t h e  agreement 

is  l i m i t e d  t o  the U.S, Attorneys '  O f f i c e s  f o r  New York and 

Miami and cannot bind o t h e r  p rosecu t ing  a u t h o r i t i e s .  

Do you unders tand t h a t ?  

A Y e s .  

0 Now, it a l s o  says  t h a t  it i s  f u r t h e r  understood 

t h a t  you must a t  a l l  t i m e s  g i v e  complete, t r u t h f u l  and 

a c c u r a t e  informat ion and test imony and must n o t  connnit 

any f u r t h e r  crimes whatsoever, 

Now, I 've d iscussed  t h a t  a t  l e n g t h  w i t h  you 

and your a t t o r n e y ,  correct? 

A Y e s ,  

Q And you unders tand t h a t  i f  you break the 

agreement by n o t  t e l l i n g  the whole t r u t h  t o  the Grand J u r y  

o r  a t  a t r i a l ,  t h a t  the Government can charge you wi th  

eve ry th ing  else t h a t  you've done, i nc lud ing  a l l  t h e  t h i n g s  

that we've agreed we won't charge you wi th  i f  you t e s t i f y  
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A Y e s .  
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Q And the agreement s a y s ,  should you wmit any 

f u r t h e r  cr imes,  or  should it be determined t h a t  you have 

given f a l s e ,  incomplete or mis lead ing  test imony or 

informat ion ,  or  have o the rwise  v i o l a t e d  any p rov i s ion  of 

this agreement, you a h a l l  thereafter be s u b j e c t  to 

p rosecu t ion  for any Federa l  c r imina l  v i o l a t i o n  of which 

the U S .  Attorney 'e  Of f i ce  f o r  t h e  Southern District o f  

New York o r  the U S .  Attorney ' s  Of f i ce  for t h e  Southern 

District of  F l o r i d a  has  o r  have knowledge, i nc lud ing  b u t  

m t  l i m i t e d  t o  p e r j u r y  and o b s t r u c t i o n  of j u s t i c e ,  

Any such prosecut ions  may be premised upon any 

in format ion  provided by M r .  Gonzalez , and such informat ion 

may be used a g a i n s t  h h ,  

Do you understand t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  

Q SO, i n  o t h e r  words, you unders tand t h a t  from 

h e r e  on o u t ,  anything t h a t  you say  today i n  the Grand 

J u r y  or t o  u s  i n  i n t e rv i ews ,  and so on,  can be used 

a g a i n s t  you if you later violate the agreement and w e  decidi 

t o  charge you w i t h  a l l  s o r t s  o f  bther things? 

A Yes, I do unders tand that,  

Q So you unders tand t h a t  t h i s  is  a very serious 
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step y o u ' r e  t a k i n g  today and i t ' s  c r i t i c a l l y  impor tan t  

t h a t  you t e l l  t h e  whole t r u t h ,  you unders tand t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t ,  And i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  it s a y s  t h a t  it 

i s  agreed  t h a t  i n  t h e  e v e n t  t h a t  it i s  determined t h a t  

you have v i o l a t e d  any p rov i s ion  of t h e  agreement, a l l  

s t a t e m e n t s  that  you have made to t h i s  o f f i c e  o r  o t h e r  l a w  

e n f  otcernent a g e n t s ,  and any tes t imony t h a t  you ' v e  g iven  

b e f o r e  a Grand J u r y  or o t h e r  t r i b u n a l ,  whether p r i o r  t o  

or subsequent  t o  t h i s  agreement, and any l e a d s  from such 

s t a t e m e n t s  or tes t imony,  s h a l l  be admissible i n  ev idence  

i n any and a l l  c r i m i n a l  proceedings  c u r r e n t l y  pending or 

h e r e a f t e r  brought  a g a i n s t  Mr, Gonzalez, and t h a t  you 

won ' t  make any a t t emp t  t o  have any such s t a t e m e n t a ' k e p t  

o u t  o f  evidence o r  suppressed ,  and you've agreed  to  t h a t ,  

c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q And it f u r t h e r  s a y s  t h a t  you have f i n a l l y  agreed  

t h a t  you w i l l  waive any r i g h t s  t h a t  you may have to be 

sen tenced  on  the g u i l t y  p l e a  tha t  you ' r e  go ing  to  e n t e r  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - - -  

b e f o r e  the Government's de te rmina t ion  t h a t  your  coope ra t i on  

pu r suan t  t o  t h i s  agreement ha s  been completed; you a g r e e  

t o  t h a t ,  correct? 

A Y e s  . 

- 
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Q And then  it s a y s ,  no a d d i t i o n a l  promises ,  agree-  
I 

ments,  o r  c o n d i t i o n s  have been e n t e r e d  i n t o  o t h e r  t han  

t h o s e  set f o r t h  i n  t h i s  le t ter ,  and none w i l l  ,be e n t e r e d  

i n t o  u n l e s s  i n  w r i t i n g  and s igned  by a l l  t h e  p a r t i e s ;  i s  

t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q And t h e  o n l y  o t h e r  d i s c u s s i o n  t h a t  w e  have had 

t h a t  r e l a t e s  t o  a l l  o f  these m a t t e r s  i s  t h a t  I have t o l d  

you t h a t  t h e  Government w i l l  n o t  oppose any r ea sonab le  

b a i l  r e q u e s t  t h a t  your  a t t o r n e y  may make wi th  r e g a r d  t o  

your  s i t u a t i o n  a t  t h i s  t i m e ;  is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q And you unders tand  t h a t  your a t t o r n e y  is  t r y i n g  

t o  come up w i t h  s u f f i c i e n t  c o l l a t e r a l  s o  t h a t  we can r each  

an agreement on an a p p r o p r i a t e  amount o f  b a i l  which t h e  

Judge would a c c e p t  ao  t h a t  you cou ld  be r e l e a s e d  a f t e r  : 

t h e  g u i l t y  p l e a  is  taken ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Now, Mr. Gonzalez, is  it  f a i r  t o  s a y  t h a t  when 

you p r e v i o u s l y  appeared b e f o r e  this Grand Jury that you 

d e l i b e r a t e l y  l i e d  as t o  c e r t a i n  m a t t e r s ?  

A Yes, I d id .  

Q And i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  you s a i d  t h a t  youdidn ' t  

know who t h e  Frenchman is, b u t  you r e a l l y  know who t h e  
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Frenchman was,  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Who i s  t h e  Frenchman? 

A L a s s i e r ,  a  j o u r n a l i s t  from France.  

Q Hubert  L a s s i e r ,  L-a-s-s-i-e-r, and w " u x w  he's a 

A Y e s .  

u  a . #*La f i r s t  . lU.l.*PTr come t o  meet h,ig? 

A .- I n  . Argentina.  
>" -.'" w ----.. 

Q How d i d  you come t o  m e e t  him? 

A I was i n t roduced  t o  him, b u t  w e  d i d n ' t  d i s c u s s  

much about  -- about  any th ing  o f  Omega 7 ,  more o r  less, 

b u t  he  s a i d  t h a t  he was going t o  go t o  Miami and h e  wanted 

t o  see m e ,  and then  l a t e l y  I m e t  him i n  M i a m i .  

Q You s a y  l a t e l y .  You mean later you m e t  him? 

A Yes, l a t e r ,  yes .  I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t h e  date. The : 

c o u r t  have t h e  i n fo rma t ion  th rough  my v i s a .  I m e t  him 

and I a r r a n g e  an in t e rv i ew .  

Q Through your  v i s a ?  

A Y e s ,  my P a s s p o r t ,  the stamps,  and I a r r a n g e  for  

an i n t e r v i e w ,  you know, f o r  Omega 7. 

Q Now, who was it t h a t  i n t roduced  you t o  

M r .  L a s s i e r  i n  Argent ina?  

A Fredd ie  Z a r a t i n i .  
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Q 2-a-r-a-t-i-n-i, c o r r e c t ?  

A I t h i n k  s o ,  yes .  

Q C a n y o u  describe j u s t  b r i e f l y  t h e  meeting t h a t  
* -  . *_. .. >- , , * ).".'-l- 

happened i n  t h e  warehouse i n  B ia l eah  wi th  M r .  L a s s i e r ?  

A W e l l ,  I p i c k  him u~ - "  i n  ." * .  Me h o t e l ,  * L pL . which I d o n ' t  

remember t h e  name, M i a m i  Beach. I took  him to  a park ing  

l o t  where r person and I went i n t o  a van 

covered up -- 

M r .  L a s s i e r  had b r o u g h t  with him? 

A Yes. 

Q And you went i n t o  a van? 

A W e  went on t h e  back o f  t h e  van 

Q The o t h e r  person ,  was t h a t  somebody t h a t  .,. -w ," " .- *, + * - +?," 6, W ' , ~  a 

, which it was 

covered ,  a l l  covered,  and you c o u l d n ' t  see o u t s i d e .  

Q When you say covered,  you mean t h e  windows were 

covered o r  p a i n t e d  over?  

The windows, yes. 

And then  what happened? 

W e  d rove  a l l  o v e r ,  you know, 3 d o n ' t  know how 

long ,  maybe an hour ,  whatever ,  u n t i l  w e  went i n s i d e  what 

is supposed t o  be a warehouse, and w e  s t a n d  there f o r  -- 
p p p p p p p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

s t a i X i n s i d e  abou t  f i v e ,  t e n  minutes  w i thou t  -- n o t  

g e t t i n g  o u t  u n t i l  t h e y  took  us o u t ,  and then  t hey  brought  

u s  i n  -- 
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Who is they t h a t  brought you in?- 

They have hoods. 

You mean o t h e r  people from Omega'l? 

Y e s .  

And they were wearing hoods over  t h e i r  heads? 

Yes. 

What happened i n s i d e  the warehouse? 

H e  make an in terv iew o f ,  you know, o f  why we  

were t r y i n g  t o  overthrow Cas t ro ,  and s o  f o r t h ,  you know. 

Q Who d i d  most of  t h e  t a l k i n g  f o r  Omega 73 

A Only one person. 

Q Who is t h a t ?  

A W e l l ,  supposed t o  be t h e  head of t h e  organiza t ior  

he was -- d i d n ' t  sound -- he sounds with a voice  d i f f e r e n t .  

Q H e  was t r y i n g  t o  d i s g u i s e  h i s  voice? 

A Yes. 

Q But you knew who t h a t  was, c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s ,  I f i q u r e  --, 
Who was t h a t ?  

A I fdcjure it was Arocena. 

Q You knew very w e l l  it was Arocena? 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

A Y e s .  H e  have hood. Everything was covered wi th  

m a t e r i a l ,  s o  you couldn ' t  see anything i n  t h e  place.  

Q What was t h e  o t h e r  man who came with Mr. Lass ie r  
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doing? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

unders tood 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I d o n ' t  know t h e  name, 

What was he  do ing  t h e r e ?  

H e  w a s  f i l m i n g  it. 

H e  was f i l m i n g  it? 

Taping it. 

Do you happen t o  r e c a l l  whether M r .  L a s s i e r  

Spanish? 

N o t  much. 

So how was t h i s  i n t e r v i e w  being done? 

I n  Eng l i sh ,  

I n  Engl i sh?  

Y e s .  

Q Was Arocena t a l k i n a  i n  E n a l i s h  o r  was it b e i n a  

t r a n s l a t e d  bv somebodv? 

A I n  Engl i sh .  

Q H e  was t a l k i n a  i n  Ena l i sh?  

A Yes, 

Q And you d o n ' t  have anydoubt t h a t  it was Arocena 

who was t a l k i n a  t h e r e .  correct? 

A No, I d o n ' t  t h i n k  so. 

_Q - - - - You it- was -Arocena? 

A I d i d n ' t  see him, 

Q You'd known him for a long  t i m e  and  you knew i t  
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was Arocena, c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Is it f a i  r 

o f  Omega -73 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And d i d  you p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  any 

bombings o r  a t tempted bombings by Omega 77 

A Y e s ,  I d id .  

Q Would you t e l l  t h e  Grand J u r y  about  some o f  

those? 

Mexico has  w i t h  Cuba and t h e  economic h e l p  t h a t  Mexico is  

g i v i n g  Cuba w i t h  t h e  United S t a t e s  money. 

0 And, b r i e f l y ,  what d i d  you do with r ega rd  t o  

t h e  Mexican Consulate  bombing? 

Another person ,  youknow, Gerry and I -- 
a 

That '  Gerardo Necuze? 

Q Who s a v e  t h a t  t o  you? 

A Arocena . 
Q Where d i d  he  g ive  i t  t o  you? 

A I n  one apar tment  i n  LaHacienda Apartments. 



Q Did he a i v e  anv i n s t r u c t i o n s  abou t  connec t i nu  

it or any th ing?  

A Yes, t o  p l u g  i n  t h e  w i r e  t o  a b a t t e r y .  

Q The b a t t e r y  snap  connec to r ?  

A Snap connec to r ,  and t o  be s u r e  t h a t  the t i m e  w a s  

se t  f o r  midn iah t  when nobodv was i n  t h e  b u i l d i n u .  

Q Then what d i d  you dg, b r i e f l y ,  w i t h  the bomb? 

. A  W e  walk i n t o  t h e  Consu la te .  

Q T h a t ' s  you and Necuze? 

A Yes, w e  walk i n t o  t h e  Consu l a t e ,  and I s a t  on 

a  s o f a  w h i l e  h e  t a l k s  t o  an employee. There  was an  

employee t h e r e  a t  the t i m e .  And I t 

w i l l  s t i c k  undeg* t3& ... s!?Q ,&* &fi, qi, gd'u down -1 --* ' -5 . , 

Q I n  o t h e r  words, you were g o i n g  t o  t r y  t o  s t i c k  

t h e  bomb undernea th  t h e  s o f a  w i t h  t a p e ?  

A So it wouldn ' t  be on t h e  f l o o r ,  ye s .  

Q And youtook the pape r  o f f  t h e  t a p e ?  

t A Y e s .  

Q But the  bomb f e l l  down to  t h e  f l o o r ?  

A Yeah, and from t h a t  t i m e  on  I was aca r ed ,  becausc 
-<(r 

t 

Q And you were a f r a i d  it might  go  o f f ?  

A Yeah, and when t h a t  t h i n g  f e l l  down, I know I 

t r i e d  t o  p u t  it back,  I push it back,  whatever ,  I d o n ' t  
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r e c a l l  e x a c t l y ,  and I s t a n d  up and t o l d  Nec-uze t o  go,  and 

w e  l e f t .  That  was on ly  about  two minutes i n s i d e  t h a t  

p lace .  

Q So whi le  Necuze was d i s t r a c t i n g  somebody, you 

p u t  t h e  bomb under t h e  s o f a  and it d i d n ' t  s t i c k ,  i t  f e l l  

down, and then  you pushed it back underneath the s o f a ?  

A Yes, I t h i n k  I t r i e d  t o  p u t  it back. I know 

t h a t  I push it back. I knowthat I push it back and I j u s t  

g o t  up. 

Q And then  you l e f t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Do you know whether t h a t  bomb ever went o f f ?  

A I t  d id .  

Q Did you go back l a t e r  t h a t  n i g h t ?  

A Yes, I drove back, because I was a f r a i d ,  I 

wanted t o  see what happens, even though t h a t  w e  knew t h a t .  

t h e  b u i l d i n g  was empty a t  t h a t  time, b u t  I was a f r a i d  

that something could have happened, and we went back. 

Q Were you t h e r e  when t h e b m b  was a c t u a l l y  

exploding? 

A No. 

Q I t  was after it exploded? 

A Afte r .  

Q Did it cause  a l o t &  damage? 
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- 
A Yes, i t  d id .  

Q Was t h e r e  a l s o  another  a c t i v i t y  t h a t  was 

supposed t o  have been happening t h a t  day t h a t  Omega 7 

people w e r e  doing? 

A Yes, i n  a pro-Castro magazine i n  M i a m i .  

Q T h a t ' s  Replica Magazine? 

Q What were those  o t h e r  people supposed t o  be 

doing? 

A I as 

p r o t e s t .  

0 And they lit t h e  gaso l ine  and t h e  idea  was to 

have a f i r e  o r  explosion? 

A Yes, f o r  t h e  p r e s s ,  s o  t h e  p r e s s  w i l l  see i t . '  

Q Were you p resen t  when t h e  garbage can was 

purchased t h a t  w a s  going to  be used? 

A Yeah, t h e  garbage can, yes. 

Who was it t h a t  
I_ I L 1___- 

e can? %*-*<> 

A Y e s .  
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o r  was supposed t o  be p u t t i n g  it t h e r e ?  

A I t  was supposed t o  be J u s t o .  

Q J u s t o  Rodriguez? 

A Yes, and Nestor.  

Q A t  an e a r l i e r  t i m e ,  had you gone nea r  t h e  

American Airnays ch,arter_*,off ice a t  a t i m e  when something . . I .  - . -+-f,. &* , . az.,?., 

was supposed t o  happen? ---"- - ~ . * W * > Y - ' ~ H M ~ .  

A Yeah, t hey  t o l d  m e  t o  go t o  the mal l .  

Q Who t o l d  you? 

A Arocena s a i d  -- I d i d n ' t  know who d i d  it -- a t  

t h a t  t i m e ,  t h a t  company was t r a d i n g  wi th  Cas t ro ,  l a t e l y  

was i n d i c t e d  i n  M i a m i  f o r  i l l e g a l  t r a d e  wi th  t h e  enemy. 

Q The American Airways c h a r t e r  was l a t e r  i n d i c t e d  

for  i l l e g a l  t r a d i n g  wi th  t h e  enemy? 

A And some of them was a r r e s t e d  aga in  i n  t h e  

a i r p o r t  w i th  documents from Castro .  But,  anyway, I was 

supposed t o  go t h e r e  a t  a c e r t a i n  t i m e  and watch from 

a c r o s s  t h e  street t h a t  no l i g h t  went on on t h e  bufding 

i n  c a s e  somebody was walking i n t o  t h e  buildin-g-. My-jab was 
- - -  - - - - - - - - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

j u s t  t o  c a l l  and l e t  them know t h a t  a bomb was p laced  s o  

they  can evacua te  t h e  bu i ld ing .  

Q And d i d  a l i g h t  go  on when you were watching? 
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L,/C$L f; + 

A I saw a light, it went on the eaihe floor, but 

I didn't know the power, and I was afraid maybe the person 

could walk up or down, or whatever could happen upstairs, 

so what I did was I called immediately the company and 

told them that a bomb was placed and that they will -- 
so they will dismantle it. They put it in a way always that 

nobody around. 

Q When you say they, who are you talking about? rn 

A Arocena. 

Q Was there also a time when &--- a 57 millimeter . .A1&. .(.IYC.~.bw- -sy*rr++V.blllC.C shell $ ‘W) I 

or something similar to that was thrown at a location? 
n r . Ll.c*ku,ii%n+4) v-  .O- . , .,& &.. 

A Yes, on Replica. 

Q And what happened on that occasion? 

A It didn't go off, so -- 
0 Where were you at the time? 

A I was there. 

Q Who .. -. - I  - threw ,. . 1- . llw--hr.,.,hwp the shell? 

A Jerry. - " -ilr ...* 

0 And who else was there? 

A Arocena was drivincr around. 

Q And whose idea was it to do this attack? 

A Arocena. 

0 And who obtained the shell, if you know? 

A ~ i m .  I never knew where he obtained anything. 
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0 But it was Arocena who had uotte; it? 

. A Y e s ,  t h a t  I know, you know, 
--- - - - -- - - - -- -- 

Q Did you a l s o  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  a t t empted  bombings 

of t h e  Nicaraguan Consu la te?  

A A f t e r  t h a t  -- yeah. Okay. 

Q Did you want t o  add something? 

A I d o n ' t  know t h e  d a t e ,  

Q I unders tand  t h a t O D o n f i t  worry abou t  t h a t .  Did 

you p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  an a t t empted  bombing of the Nicaraguan 

Consu la te?  

A Because w e  d i d n ' t  want t o  do any th ing  else, and 

because  o u r  g o a l  was t o  send commandos t o  Cuba, b u t ,  w e l l ,  

it was dec ided  t h a t  it should  b e  done, s o  Gerardo and I, 

Necuze, w e  went t h e r e ,  and J e r r y  g o t  o u t  o f  the car and p u t  

it t h e r e ,  b u t  it neve r  worked, 

about  it? 

A Yes. 

Q And what was t h a t ,  b r i e f l y ?  

A More or  less I ,  myse l f ,  I was a g a i n s t  it a l l  t h e  

t i m e ,  even though I d i d  it, a g a i n s t  any a c t J o n s  i n  the 

Uni ted  S t a t e s ,  even though t h a t  i t f i e  v e r y  s a d  t o  see how 

t h e y  a l l o w  t h e  enemy t o  be t r a d i n g  i n  t h e  Uni ted  S t a t e s  w h i l e  

t h e y  are invad ing  C e n t r a l  America and,  you know, and i n  
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Cuba you see your f a m i l i e s  and r e l a t i v e s  i n - j a i l  and being 

k i l l e d .  

Anway,  I'm n o t  saying  t h a t  I d i d  r i g h t ,  it was 

done, bu t  I was a g a i n s t  a c t i o n s  i n  t h e  United S t a t e s .  I 

was always t r y i n g  t o  gear  the a c t i o n s  toward Cuba. 

So w e  had an argument t h a t  w e  d i d n ' t  want t o  do 

anything else i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ,  

Q Do you happen t o  r e c a l l  where Arocena w a s  t h a t  

A Not e x a c t l y ,  I would l i e  i f  I -- 
Q Let  me pass  t h a t  f o r  now, You may r e c a l l  a t  

some l a t e r  po in t .  A t  t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  Mexican Consulate 

bombing, where was Arocena t h a t  day? 

A I learned  he w a s  i n  New York, 

- Q And d i d  he t e l l  you he was cominq t o  New York 

t o  p u t  some bombs down? 

A Yeah, he mentioned t h a t  he was coming t o  New 

York. H e  d i d n ' t  spec i fy  where o r  how. H e  never spoke about  

anyth ing  else b u t  whatever you were doing. 

Q And d i d  you f i n d  o u t  t h a t ,  indeed, a bomb d id  

go o f f  t h e  same day o r  thereabouts ,  t h a t  t h e  bomb went o f f  

a t  t h e  Mexican Consulate i n  Miami? 

A Y e s ,  

Q Where d i d  it go o f f  i n  New York? 
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A I t h i n k  it was i n  t h e  Mexican - 
0 The Mexican Consu la te  i n  New York, a l s o ?  

A I t h i n k  s o ,  something l i k e  t h a t . . . I  d o n ' t  

remember. 8 

- - 

Q A l l  right.Who is  Hanny Fernandez? 

Manny Fernandez is from E l i zabe th .  Unfo r tuna t e ly ,  
.r ...-h.LFaU-' - 7 .  *. - *.*^?- **-P ..+, Y "" ' 

I g o t  invo lved  w i t h  him, because  he promised -- should  I-- -*-. , - . * . . - . . - " . ? r .* ar------.V..23 

Q Yes, go  ahead. 

A Because maybe you w e r e n ' t  go ing  t o  a sk  t h a t .  

Q Go ahead. 

H e  had promised through . .'i * .hr '-9- , 9 r  .-r4 .,* 

A Tony I b a r r i a .  
I -̂.& 

Q And Tony Ibarria spoke to  you? 
- -- 

Through Arocena, a r ranged  f o r  m e  t o  t a l k  t o  . 

Tony, s o  he  s a i d  t h a t  h e  d i d n ' t  want t o  show h i s  f a c e .  

Q Arocena d i d n ' t  want t o  show h i s  f ace?  

A H e  made t h e  arrangement ,  anyway. 

Q And YOU a l r e a d v  knew who Tonv w a s ?  

A Yes. 

0 And you spoke t o  Tony and Tony s a i d  t h a t  Manby 

wanted t o  g i v e  money t o  Omega 7 3  

A Yes. 
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Q A l l  r i g h t .  Was any money given? 

A Y e s .  

Q And was t h e r e  e v e r  an occas ion  when you d i r e c t l y  
* 

g o t  money? 

A Y e s .  

Q And who gave you t h a t  money? 

A Manny . 
Q And where were you when he  gave you t h e  money? 

A I n  a t i r e  s t o r e  where they  sel l  tires. 

Q By t h e  L a t i n  T i r e  s t o r e ?  

A L a t i n  T i r e ,  yes.  

Q Were you i n s i d e  i t  o r  o u t s i d e ?  

A Outside.  

Q Did Manny g i v e  you t h e  money i n s i d e  o f  any kind 

o f  envelope or wrapper? 

A Y e s ,  i n  an envelope,  c losed .  

Q Did he  t e l l  you how much money he  was givingon 

t h a t  occasion? 

A Y e s ,  I'm p r e t t y  s u r e  it was $16,000. I d o n ' t  

know the number. But he  s a i d  it was $16,000, 

Q And what d i d  you do wi th  t h a t  money? 

A H e  s a i d  i f  I wanted t o  count it, I said no. 
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What I wanted was t o  g e t  o u t ,  s o  I want. I j u s t  gave it 

t o  Arocena. 

Q Was t h e r e  e v e r  a  t ime when Manny Fernandez 

wanted Omega 7 t o  do  some t h i n g s  f o r  Fernandez? 

A Yeah. Up t o  t h a t  t i m e ,  I d i d n ' t  know what bus i -  

n e s s  he was i n ,  you know, then I l ea rned  t h a t  he was 

d e a l i n g  wi th  drugs.  

Q How d i d  you l e a r n  t h a t ?  

A THey s a i d  t h a t  he had some accounts  t ha tpeop le  

d i d n ' t  pay him. 

0 Who t o l d  you t h a t ?  

A W e l l .  Arocena i n  t h e  d i scuss ion .  That w a s  when- 

t h e  d a t e s  1 d o n ' t  r e c a l l ,  M r .  Tabak. I t o l d  Arocena t h a t ,  

you know, he should meet him because I d i d n ' t  want t o  be  

d e a l i n g  wi th  him i n  t h a t  way. 

Q And what d i d  Manny Fernandez want Omega 7 t o  

do wi th  t h e  people  t h a t  owed money t o  Manny? 

A H e  wanted t o  call on t h e  phone and say ,  you 

know, you ' re  overdue s o  much money i n  a l l  accounts  t h a t  

he  h a s  t h a t  people  d i d n ' t  pay. 

Q And Arocena t o l d  you t h a t  t h i s  was drug money 

t h a t  was owed t o  Fernandez? 

A A t  f i r s t ,  no, b u t  then  he s a i d  t h a t  a c t u a l l y  
L 

what he was looking  f o r  was t o  see i f  he could get t h e  
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connec t ion  o f  M-19 movement w i th  t h e  d rug  p o p l e .  The M-19 

is t h e  Colombian Communist Movement, t h a t  it h a s  been 
- -- 

l e a r n e d  t h a t  t h e y  t r a d e  w i t h  d ruqs  and C a s t r o ,  and he  
- -  - 

s t a t e d  he  wanted t o  f i n &  o u t  where theyhid  t h e  money so 

we c o u l d  complete the i n f i l t r a t i o n  of Cuba. which vou need 

b o a t s ,  canons and a l l  k ind  o f  weapons t o  i n f i l t r a t e  p e o p l t  

i n s i d e  t h e  i s l a n d .  

Q So Arocena t o l d  you t h a t  t h e s e  people  t h a t  owed 

money t o  Nanny Fernandez owed i t  because  o f  d rugs  Xanny 

Fernandez had mold t o  them? 

A Yes. 

Q Was it a l a r g e  amount of money t h a t  these 

people  owed? 

A I d i d n ' t  g e t  invo lved  i n t o  the amounts. I d i d n ' t  

know how much, you know, I d o n ' t  t h i n k  it was t h a t  much. 

Q You're n o t  e u r e  a t  t h e  moment? 

A NO, no, 

Q Now, d i d  you make any phone cal ls to any o f  

t h e s e  people?  

A I did make a coup le  o f  phone calls ,  

Q Was t h e r e  one  person who wasnever a v a i l a b l e ?  

A Yes. 

Q And did Arocena l a t e r  t e l l  you t h a t  he  had done 

any th ing  t o  g e t  t h i s  pe r son ' s  a t t e n t i o n ?  
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o r d e r  -- because  he  s a i d  l i k e  he  was -- I d o n ' t  know how 

t o  e x p l a i n  it -- t h a t  h e  w a s n ' t  do ing  a n y t h i n g  t o  get  t h e  

p e o p l e  to pay t h e  moneyf he j u s t  wanted Manny t o  g i v e  t h e  

monev t h a t  he  had ~ r o m i s e d .  

Q To Arocena? 

A Arocena. And what he d i d  was, h e  p u t  6ome k ind  

A Y e s .  H e  s a y  it l i k e  a joke.  W h a t h e  d id  was, i n  

o f  a can  w i t h  s a s o l i n e  on the s i d e  o f  a c a r  s o  it looked 
- -- 

l i k e  a hire, b u t  it wasn ' t  a c t u a l l y  a fire.  It  was n e v e r  

r e p o r t e d  on t h e  press, anyway. 

0 So, i n  other words.Arocena t o l d  vou t h a t  w i t h  

r e s a r d t o  one  o f  t h e s e  d r u g  peop l e  who owed money t o  

Manny Fernandez ,  t h a t  s i n c e  t h i s  d rug  guy was n o t  r e t u r n i n g  

phone c a l l s  t h a t  you peop le  were making, Arocena t o l d  you 

t h a t  h e  p u t  a can  w i t h  q a s o l i n e  i n  it -- 
A A l i t t l e  can.  

Q -- which he lit -- 
A I d o n ' t  know whether  h e  d i d  it o r  somebody else. 

I t h i n k  he d id  it. 

Q H e  t o l d  vou t h a t  a can of a a s o l i n e  w a s  ~ u t  

n e x t  t o  t h e  car and lit t o  make it l o o k  l i k e  t h e y  were 
1 

g o i n s  t o  blow UP the car o r  do somethinu l i k e  t h a t  i f  the 

man d i d n ' t  pay up,  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Y e s .  
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Q Now, were you e v e r  p r e s e n t  a t  a -time when Manny 

Fernandez i n t roduced  you t o  o r  po in t ed  you o u t  t o  someone 

who owed money t o  him? 

A Yeah. One day. w e  went -- t h a t ' s  t h e  o n l y  day. 

W e  went t o  a p l a c e  where I g o t  los t  -- anyway, when w e  

g o t  t h e r e ,  I know he w a s  t a l k i n g  w i t h  ArocenaLManny and 

somebody else, and I was walking,  and t h e y  t o l d  m e ,  l i k e ,  

you .know, w a i t ,  and t h e y  were d i s c u s s i n g  something and 

supposed to  be  l i k e ,  you know, about  t h e  money, or whatever ,  

and I w a s  t h e r e .  I d o n ' t  r ecognize  t h e  f a c e  o f  t h e  guy. 

I f  you p u t  it i n  f r o n t  o f  m e ,  I wouldn' t  be a b l e  t o  -- 
Q I n  any even t ,  you and Arocena were supposed t o  

look  l i k e  tough guys and Manny was going t o  s a y  t h a t  t h i s  

man had t o  pay you t h e  money i n  t h e  f u t u r e ?  

A Because t h e y  spoke -- you d i d n ' t  see them 

a rgu ing .  Maybe it was l i k e  a f r i e n d l y  v i s i t ,  -- n o t  

f r i e n d l y  . 
Q Bus ines s l i ke?  

A Yes. 

Q But,  inany e v e n t ,  t h e  g i s t  o f  what Fernandez 

w a s  s ay ing  t o  t h e  man w a s ,  you ' r e  go ing  t o  have t o  pay t h e  

money t h a t  you owe t o  m e  t o  t h e s e  two men, is  t h a t  

c o r r e c t ?  

A W e l l ,  h e  cou ld  have s a i d  t h i s  t o  Manny because  
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I was s t and ing  f a r .  - 

Q T h a t ' s  your unders tanding of what t h e  purpose 

was supposed to  be? 
0 

A I t  w a s  supposed t o  be  t h a t  way, yeah. 

Q While Arocena was a f u g i t i v e  -- and you under- 

s t a n d  what t h a t  means, charges  had been f i l e d  and h e  was 

running away -- 
A Y e s .  . 

\v\ 

Q -- were you c o n t a c t  w i th  Arocena? 

A Yeah, he  used t o  c a l l  m e  a t  t h e  o f f i c e .  

Q And how d i d  you know where you were supposed t o  

meet him? 

A W e l l ,  h e  make it so obvious t h e  f i r s t  t i m e ,  

and then  he t o l d  m e  t h a t  w e  were going t o  meet i n  a couple  

o f  p l a c e s .  

Q How d i d  he  t e l l  you, over  t h e  phone, which 

p l a c e  it w a s ?  

A Like he  p u t  a name, l i k e  I t h i n k  one  w a s  

Jlxnerican r e s t a u r a n t ,  something l i k e  t h a t .  

Q When he g o t  on t h e  phone -- 
A H e  t o l d  me, I want t o  see you a t  such t i m e  i n  

t h a t  p l ace .  I knew t h a t  t h a t  p l a c e  was on 37th Avenue or 

ano the r  p l ace .  

Q What I mean is ,  did  he have some k ind  o f  code;, 
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- 
A Yes, a  kind of  code, yes .  

Q What d i d  he  u s e ,  numbers o r  l e t t e r s ?  

A A l e t t e r - t y p e  o f  code. 

A A and B,  t h a t ' s  it. 
- 

Q That  was t o  t e l l  you t h e  p l a c e  t o  meet him? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you e v e r  meet him a t  t h e  p l a c e  t h a t  he  was 

a c t u a l l y  s t a y i n g  a t ?  

A Y e s ,  because a c t u a l l y  what he was a sk ing  m e ,  

i f  I chid h = l p - h h  economically, you know, t h a t  was h i s  

mainrworry a t  t h e  t i m e ,  t o  be a b l e  t o  pay, I guess ,  t h e  

r e n t ,  and t h e  t a x e s ,  and whatever,  and I t o l d  him I d i d n ' t  

have the money because my bus ines s  -- I had i n v e s t e d  

e v e r v t h i n a  i n  t h e  bus iness .  and s o  f o r t h .  And one dav I 

show him my b i l l s .  So I was a f r a i d  t h a t  he was going t o  

t h i n k  t h a t  I d i d n ' t  want t o  h e l p  him. So one day h e  c a l l e d  

,me f o r  t h a t ,  l i k e  i n  an emergency, and he  t o l d  me to  go 

t o  t h e  house where he  was s t a y i n g .  

e Q And you went t o  t h e  a c t u a l  house? 

A Y e s .  I was r e a l l y  s ca red ,  because I w a s  afraid 

if something happens, l i k e  it d i d ,  he could t h i n k  t h a t  

t h e y  fo l low m e  o r  I could have squealed o r  t o l d  t h e  police. 

So I r e a l l y  was -- I t o l d  him I d o n ' t  l i k e  i t ,  I d o n ' t  
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even want t o  know where you a r e  now because  - i f  something 

happens,  you may t h i n k  t h a t  I d i d  it. 

Q Did he t e l l  you how many o t h e r  people  knew 

where t h a t  house was? . 
A N o  , - 
Q Did he  s a y  any th ing  l i k e  you ' r e  t h e  o n l y  one 

who knows where t h i s  is? 
- - 

A T h a t ' s  why I w a s  so a f r a i d .  H e  d i d n ' t  u se  no 

d i s g u i s e  a t  a l l ,  a lmos t ,  and I t o l d  him, how could  you 

be  walkinq t h e  streets l i k e  t h a t ,  t hey  are go ing  to  

r ecogn ize  you. I thought  i f  t hey  see somebody and f o l l o w  

him, i f  I ' m  t h e  o n l y  one t h a t  knows t h e  add re s s ,  h e ' s  

going t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  one t h a t  r e p o r t e d  him. 

Q And vou knew a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you were s e e i n g  

him t h a t  h e  was a f u u i t i v e .  is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Indeed,  you had a l r e a d y  t o l d  t h e  Grand J u r y  
- -- - 

that you d i d n ' t  know where he  w a s ?  

A Y e s ,  y o u ' r e  r i g h t ,  

Q You had,  i n  f a c t ,  s een  h im,cor rec t?  

wh i l e  h e  w a s  a f u g i t i v e ?  

A A t a p e  r eco rd ing ,  no, A c a s s e t t e .  
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Q Why a c a s s e t t e ?  

A H e  took it, a c t u a l l v .  

Q What was on t h a t  c a s s e t t e ?  

A When t h e  FBI had gone t o  my o f f i c e ,  I had a t a p e  

r eco rde r  which I t o l d  t h e  FBI I wasn't h id ing ,  it was a 

b i g  tape r eco rde r  t h a t  I use when I d i c t a t e  let ters,  and 

it has  a vo ice  a c t i v a t o r .  

Q Th i s  was a r eco rd ing  of  a meeting wi th  you 

and some FBI agen t s?  

_ A -  Y e s .  I d i d n ' t  expec t  them t o  come -- 
Q You gave t h a t  t o  Arocena? 

f i  Y e s ,  I had it and t h a t  Imentioned it t o  him, 

and he s a i d ,  could  I l i s t e n  to it and I s a i d  yes, wel l  

pre you going t o  g i v e  it back tome. H e  s a i d  yeah , . so  he  

took it. - 
I 

Q Now, when d id  you move t o  F l o r i d a ,  approximately? 

A About A p r i l  1979. 

Q Before you moved you had l i v e d  i n  New J e r s e y ,  

c o r r e c t ?  

A yes.  

Q Before  you moved from New J e r s e y  t o  F l o r i d a ,  

was t h e n e a t  l e a s t  one occas ion  when Arocena asked you t o  

make a phone c a l l  t h a t  had to  do wi th  a bombinq? 

A Yes. It was l i k e  a dry run,  you c a l l  it, I t h i n k ,  
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because  I was n o t  invo lved  i n  any th ing .  I was mos t ly  i n  

American p o l i t i c s ,  and t h e  o r g a n i z a t i o n  t h a t  I had t o  h e l p  

w a s  t h e  Cuban r e f u g e e s  and so f o r t h .  So h e  asked  m e  if I 

a u l d  c a l l  up  a c e r t a i n  *number a t  a c e r t a i n  t i m e ,  which .  

nobody answered. 

Q And what d i d  he  want you t o  say?  

A T h a t  a bomb was p l a c e d ,  and it was due  to  go  o f f ,  

vou know. and t hen  when I mentioned t o  him, he  l auqhed ,  

l i k e ,  you know, l i k e  -- I r e a l i z e d  l a t e r ,  when I knew him, 

t h a t  h e  was t r v i n s  m e .  

Q You t hough t  he  was j u s t  t e s t i n g  you? 

A Y e s ,  because  n o t h i n g  happened, 

Q Is it f a i r  t o  s a y  t h a t  you have been o n l y  

answer ing t h e  q u e s t i o n s  t h a t  I ' v e  asked  you h e r e  today  

t h a t  t h e r e  are o t h e r  matters that  you know a b o u t  t h a t  

w e  have n o t  g o n e - i n t o  w i t h  the Grand J u r y  today? 

A Y e s .  

and 

MR, TABAK: I ' m  go ing  t o  a s k  t h a t  t h e  w i t n e s s  

be t e m p o r a r i l y  excused and t h a t  you w a i t  o u t s i d e .  

THE FOREMAN: You -are t e m p ~ r a r i l y  excused.  

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

(Witness excused.  Time no ted :  3:05 o ' c l o c k  p.m.) 

(Colloquy follows. ) 

-- 
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EXHIBIT C 

$ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  -X  

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, . . AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF 
MOTION FOR JUDGMENT 

- v - . ON FORFEITURE OF BAIL 
* 

JOSE IGNACIO GONZALEZ, . 84 Cr. 151 (RLC) 
83 Cr. 828 (RLC) 

Defendant. . . 

STATE OF NEW YORK 1 
COUNTY OF NEW YORK z 6s.: 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ) 

BRUCE A. GREEN, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I am an Assistant United States Attorney in the 

office of Rudolph W. Giuliani, the United States Attorney for 

the Southern District of New York, and am familiar with the 

above-captioned case. I make this affidavit in support of the 

Government's motion for judgment on forfeiture of the $50,000 

personal recognizance bond signed by the defendant JOSE IGNACIO 

GONZALEZ and secured by the mortgage of MAXIM0 M. RIERA, a/k/a 

"Mariano Riera," 4510 N.W. 5th Street, Miami, Florida. 

2. On February 21, 1984, after entering into a 

cooperation agreement with the Office of the United States 

Attorney, Jose Ignacio Gonzalez pleaded guilty to Information 84 

Cr. 151 (RLC), which charged him in two counts with illegal 

possession of a destructive device in violation of Title 26, 

United States Code, Section 5861 (d), and with conspiracy in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. At the 
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- 
time, with the consent of the Government, the Court reduced 

8 

Gonzalez's bail to a $50,000 personal recognizance bond signed by 

Gonzalez and secured by property of Maximo M. Riera.' 

3. On February 21, 1984, Jose Ignacio Gonzalez 

sighed and acknowledged before the Magistrate an appearance bond 

in the amount of $50,000. The bond was secured by the mortgage 

of Maximo M. Riera, a/k/a "Mariano Riera," 4510 N.W. 5th Street, 

Miami, Florida. The conditions of the bond included, among other 

things, that the defendant report twice a week to the Federal 

Bureau of Investigation and that he not depart the Southern/Eastern 

District of New York on the Southern District of Florida. A copy 

of the bond is attached. 

4. On February 21, 1984, my office received a mort- 

gage executed by Maximo M. Riera, a/k/a "Mariano Rieratm 4510 

N.W. 5th Street, Miami, Florida, which secures a debt of $50,000 

to the United States of America. A copy of the mortgage is 

attached. 

5. On April 12, 1984, Jose Ignacio Gonzalez failed 

to appear in the Office of the United States Attorney for the 

Southern District of New York as previously arranged. Since 

that time, he has had no contact with this Office or with the 

Federal Bureau of Investigation. This Office was subsequently 

advised that the defendant entered Guatemala on April 12, 1984. 

6. On June 5, 1984, the defendant failed to appear 

before Your Honor despite having been ordered to do so, and 

accordingly the Court issued a warrant for the defendant's 

arrest. 



7 .  Upon i n f o r m a t i o n  and b e l i e f  a  d i l i g e n t  e f f o r t  

h a s  been  made by t h e  F e d e r a l  Bureau o f  I n v e s t i g a t i o n  and o t h e r s  
rn 

t o  l o c a t e  and a r r e s t  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  p u r s u a n t  t o  t h e  w a r r a n t .  I n  

a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t ' s  w i f e  and d a u g h t e r  have  been urged t o  

t r y  t o  r e a c h  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  and t o  p e r s u a d e  him t o  s u r r e n d e r  

v o l u n t a r i l y .  To d a t e ,  a l l  o f  t h e s e  e f f o r t s  have  been u n a v a i l i n g .  

8.  A t t a c h e d  h e r e t o  i s  a  proposed Order  and Judgment 

p u r s u a n t  t o  Rule  46 (e) (3 )  o f  t h e  F e d e r a l  Ru les  o f  Cr imina l  

P rocedure .  

WHEREFORE, t h e  Uni t ed  S t a t e s  moves t h a t  t h i s  mot ion  b e  

g r a n t e d  i n  a l l  r e s p e c t s .  

L o n ,  
BRUCE A. GREEN 
A s s i s t a n t  Uni ted  S t a t e s  A t t o r n e y  

Sworn t o  b e f o r e  m e  t h i s  
1st day o f  August ,  1984 

NO. 314729864 
Oualifled in New York County 

Crmmlssion Expires March JO.18& 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  -X 

1 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

- v -  ORDER At 

JOSE I G N A C I O  GONZALEZ, . 84 C r .  1 5 1  (RLC) 
8 3  C r .  828 (RLC) 

Defendan t .  . 

T h i s  c a u s e  h a v i n g  come on t o  b e  h e a r d  on  t h e  mo t ion  o f  

Rudolph W .  G i u l i a n i ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  A t t o r n e y  f o r  t h e  S o u t h e r n  

D i s t r i c t  o f  N e w  York,  by Bruce  A. Green ,  A s s i s t a n t  U n i t e d  

S t a t e s  A t t o r n e y ,  

I T  I S  HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED t h a t  t h e  U n i t e d  

S t a t e s  o f  A m e r i c a  have  and  r e c o v e r  judgment a g a i n s t  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  

# Jose I g n a c i o  Gonza lez  and a g a i n s t  t h e  o b l i g o r  Maximo M .  R i e r a ,  

a / k / a  "Mariano R i e r a , "  i n  t h e  sum o f  $50,000 p u r s u a n t  t o  R u l e  

4 6 ( e )  ( 3 )  o f  t h e  F e d e r a l  R u l e s  o f  C r i m i n a l  P r o c e d u r e  and  t h a t  

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  o f  America have  e x e c u t i o h  t h e r e f o r e .  

Da ted  : New York, New York 

, 1984 

HON. ROBERT L. CARTER 
U n i t e d  S t a t e s  D i s t r i c t  J u d g e  


